## **United States Department of the Interior** National Park Service

## National Register of Historic Places Inventory—Nomination Form

See instructions in How to Complete National Register Forms Type all entries—complete applicable sections

## 1. Name

historic	Pierce, James, Jr	., House				
and/or common	Piercestead					
2. Loca	ation					
street & number	4623 North, 140 We	est	<u>N/A</u> not for publication			
city, town	West Lafayette	<u>X</u> vicinity of	-congressional-district			
state	Indiana code	018 county	Tippecanoe	code 157		
3. Clas	sification					
Category district X buildIng(s) structure site object	Ownership public X private both Public Acquisition in process being considered N/A	Status X occupied unoccupied work in progress Accessible yes: restricted yes: unrestricted X no	Present Use agriculture commercial educational entertainment government industrial military	museum park _X_ private residence religious scientific transportation other:		
4. Own	er of Proper	ty				
name	Walter and Annette	H. Valentine				
street & number	4623 North, 140 Wes	st				
city, town	West Lafayette	X_ vicinity of	state	Indiana		
5. Loca	ation of Lega	l Description	on			
courthouse, regis	stry of deeds, etc. Recorde	ers Office.Tippecar	noe County Courthou	se		
street & number		th Third	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
city, town	Lafayet	tte	state	Indiana		
	resentation i					
title N/A			perty been determined eli	gible?yes _Xno		
date		· ·	federal stat	e county local		
depository for su	rvey records N/A					
city, town			state			

121/

2.1

**O**MB

EXP.

# Description

Çondition		Check one
$\underline{X}$ excellent	deteriorated	unaltered
good	ruins	$\underline{X}$ altered
fair	unexposed	

**Check one** 

X original site date \_N/A moved

### Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

Piercestead is a farmhouse built in the Greek Revival style and situated in a rural area on County Road 140 West, three miles northwest of West Lafayette, Indiana. Built in 1833-34 by James Pierce, Jr., an early farmer and postmaster, the original portion of the house consists of a two story unit of rectangular plan with a small, one story ell projecting from the north end of the west (rear) facade. The foundation of the structure is of native stone, now largely obscured as a result of pargeting in 1929. The exterior walls of the house are constructed of red brick fired on the site and laid up in common bond. Each section of the house is covered by a simple gable roof of medium pitch, currently shingled in slate. Chimneys are located at each end of the main section of the house, and at the west end of the original ell. Roof trim includes a plain frieze and a plain box cornice with returns at the gable ends.

The main facade of the house faces east and is comprised of four asymmetrical bays. The two southernmost bays both contain six-over-six, double-hung windows on both the first and the second story levels. The third bay contains a simple doorway, embellished only with a transom, on the first floor level, and has no opening at all on the second floor level. The final, northernmost bay is identical to the first two bays described, with six-over-six, double-hung windows on each level. All of these windows have plain wood sills and lintels, and some contain a few of the original window panes.

Additions to the house include an extension to the original ell at its west end and a one story wing added to the extreme south end of the original structure. Both of these additions were constructed in a manner sympathetic with the original structure, using similar materials and construction techniques. A 1929 remodeling included the addition of a two story enclosed porch along the rear of the structure; this could be removed without damage to the house.

All but one of the interior walls of the house are brick, covered with plaster. Two original mantels remain; these are of poplar and feature simple grooving and panel work. One stairway and one fireplace have been removed, and new oak flooring has been installed on the first floor. Two bathrooms and a modern kitchen have also been added.

One outbuilding, construction date unknown, remains on the site. Thought to have been built as a well house, it was later used as a generator room and a storeroom. It is presently in deteriorated condition.

## 8. Significance

Period prehistoric 1400–1499 1500–1599 1600–1699 1700–1799 X 1800–1899 1900–	Areas of Significance_C archeology-prehistoric archeology-historic agriculture architecture art commerce communications		science sculpture social/ humanitarian theater
Specific dates	1833-34	Builder/Architect James Pierce, Jr.	

### Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

Piercestead, built by James Pierce, Jr., is significant both for its architecture and for its role as a frontier post office. The house, one of the oldest in the county, is among the best examples of Greek Revival architecture remaining in the area. In 1846 the home also became the Cass Post Office, with Pierce as the postmaster. The building served this additional function until 1855, when the post office was closed.

	-1 m- 1 . W			M NOT	VERFED		
					rences	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1
Baker, J.D. F	ouisville	story of In e, Kentucky	ndiana, L v. 1976	eonard H.	Hartmann, F	hilatelic Biblipole,	
Baker, O.C. '	'Pierceste	ead Restor	ed", Jour	nal & Cou	rier, Feb. 1	1, 1956 ) Newspa	
Baker, O.C. ' Baker, O.C. '	'Pierce's	Interest	in Whigs"	, <u>Journal</u>	<u>&amp; Courier</u>	, Feb. 15, 1956) Lafaye 25, 1956 ) Indiar	
10. Ge	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		· · · <u>- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·</u>			23, 1930 / 11014	
Acreage of nomi							
Quadrangle nam UMT References	e <u>West La</u> t	fayette				Quadrangle scale <u>1:24,000</u>	
A 1 6 50 Zone Eastin	5 7 4 5	4 4 8 1 :	0 <sub>1</sub> 810	В	Zone Easting	Northing	
			111	D			
E				F			
G L L				н			
Verbal bounda	ry descript	ion and justi	ification			· ·	
			Plea	se see co	ntinuation s	heet	
List all states					e or county bo	_	
state N	I/A	C	ode	county		code	
state		c	ode	county		code	
11. For	m Pre	epared	Ву				
name/title	Walter \	/alentine					
organization	N/A		219 d		date	October 1, 1979	
street & number	4623 No	rt <b>h, 1</b> 40 We	est		telephone	317/463-4393	
city or town	West La	fayette			state	Indiana 47906	
12. Sta	te His	storic	Prese	ervatio	on Offic	er Certificatio	n
The evaluated sig	nificance of	this property	within the st	ate is:			
•	_ national	sta	ite _	X_ local			
						vation Act of 1966 (Public Law 8 y that it has been evaluated	<del>39</del> —
according to the d						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
State Historic Pre	servation Of	ficer signature	e	J. M.	Keden		
<b>itle</b> Indiana St	tate Histo	oric Prese	rvation	fficer		date May 6, 1982	
For NPS use o	-	» »» »	6 	Notional P	ninter	n 19 de dit di anna di Anna di anna di	
I nereby cer	tity that this	property is in	pluaea in the	_ Entere	gister d in the al Register	date 6/17/82	
Keeper of the	National Re	gister		at ege et.		an a	
Attest:	an a	*		e that is a second s	1. A.	date	
Chief of Regis	tration	the state of the solution	1961 - Sec. Sec.	et the second second second	en en la Maria		

## United States Department of the Interior Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service

## National Register of Historic Places Inventory—Nomination Form



Continuation sheet

Item number 9

Page 2

### LOCAL HISTORIES AND ATLASES

- Gilbert, Frank M. <u>History of the City of Evansville and of Vanderburgh</u> County, Indiana. 2 vols. Chicago: Pioneer Publishing Co., 1910.
- Griffing's Atlas of Vanderburh County, Indiana. Philadelphia: D. J. Lake & Co., 1880: reprint ed., Evansville: Unigraphic, Inc., and Friends of Willard Library, 1975.
- An Illustrated Plat Book of Vanderburgh and Warrick Counties, Indiana. Evansville: Tillman & Fuller Publishing Co., 1889; reprint ed., Evansville: Unigraphic, Inc., and Friends of Willard Library, 1975.

#### PERIODICALS

"Fire Apparatus All Motorized". The Evansville Courier, 6 February 1921.

"Hose House Passing: End of Era." The Evansville Courier, 17 December 1973.

"March of Progress Brings Doom to Old Bells at 10 Hose Houses." <u>The</u> Evansville Courier, 9 August 1936.

### PHOTOGRAPHIC SOURCES

(See above: The Evansville Courier, 17 December 1973.)

### PRIMARY SOURCE MATERIALS

Central Library Newspaper Clipping File

City of Evansville Annual Reports, 1908.

Evansville City Directories, 1858+.

Vanderburgh County Deed Indexes and Records.